
AGENDA
MIDDLETON/WESTPORT JOINT ZONING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 19, 2019 AT 6:00 P.M.
TO BE HELD AT TOWN OF WESTPORT HALL
5387 MARY LAKE RD., WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

Posted on the City's web site at meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/ 

Roll Call

Agenda Items

1.) Approve Minutes of 01/21/19

2.) Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to Commercial) and Land 
Division for Cell Tower and Equipment, AT&T/Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton ETZ

3.) Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning and Certified Survey Map (Create 2 Single 
Family Lots), Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton ETZ

4.) Proposed Church Use, Utility Connections and Potential Detachment, Cross Lutheran 
Church, Oncken Road, Community of Bishops Bay

Adjournment

Posted:  06/13/19

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance 
at this meeting to gather information; however, no action will be taken by any governmental body at this meeting other than the 
governmental body specifically referenced in this notice.

Notice is hereby given that a majority of the members of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about a 
subject over which the Common Council has a decision-making responsibility.  If a quorum of the Common Council attends this 
meeting, no action will be taken by the Common Council at this meeting.

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the American With Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the 
meeting to be in an accessible location or format must contact the City Administrator at (608)821-8350, 7426 Hubbard Ave., Middleton, 
WI at least 24 hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each 
request.

For more information, contact:  Eileen Kelley, City Planning Director & Zoning Administrator
Phone:  821-8370   Fax: 827-1080   E-mail:  ekelley@cityofmiddleton.us

1

http://meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/
mailto:ekelley@cityofmiddleton.us


 

MINUTES
MIDDLETON/WESTPORT JOINT ZONING COMMITTEE

MONDAY, JANUARY 21, 2019 AT 6:00 P.M.
PRESENT: Dean Grosskopf, Ken Sipsma and Cyndi Kennedy, Town of Westport; Leif Hubbard, Jennifer 

Murray and Wayne Pferdehirt, City of Middleton 
ALSO PRESENT:  Eileen Kelley, Tom Wilson

1. Call to Order

Chair Sipsma called the meeting to order at 6 p.m.

2. Approve Minutes of 10/16/18

Moved by Kennedy, seconded by Murray, to approve the minutes of 10/16/18 with several corrections:
Wayne Pferdehirt’s name is misspelled, the start time of the meeting was 7:30 p.m. not 5:30 p.m., and 
Ken Sipsma is the Chair not the Acting Chair.  Motion carried 6-0.

3. Public Hearing:  Rezoning of property from County R-1 to ER-1, Estate Residential District, 
Jason Smith, 4007 Burr Oak Drive in the Town of Westport  (PC-2558)

Chair Sipsma opened the public hearing at 6:02 p.m.

Wilson explained the request, and noted that the Town has reviewed it and recommended approval with 
conditions, as it is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Steve Dickmann, 4003 Webster Ct., indicated he is fine with the rezoning as long as the conditions as 
requested by the Town are in place.

Chair Sipsma closed the public hearing at 6:07 p.m.

4. Rezoning of property from County R-1 to ER-1, Estate Residential District; and, Extraterritorial 
Certified Survey Map (CSM) to create one additional residential lot, Jason Smith, 4007 Burr Oak 
Drive in the Town of Westport (PC-2558), Discussion/Recommendation

Moved by Hubbard, seconded by Grosskopf, to recommend rezoning of the property to ER-1 and 
approval of the CSM with the conditions as recommended by the Town:

 These lots shall be restricted to no further land divisions or creation of building sites without 
Town Board approval;

 Only one home per lot shall be permitted;
 No building shall be allowed on Lot 2 until at least the expiration of 10 years from the date the 

CSM is recorded;
 Maintain current road improvement cost payment provisions should Burr Oak be reconstructed 

as contemplated;

Approve Minutes of 01/21/19

Page 1 of 22



2
 A restriction that any residence on the CSM property shall connect to municipal water and 

sewer utilities should the service ever be extended to the property, at the then owners’ expense 
and without challenge;

 All restrictions above shall be shown on the face of the CSM;
 The Petitioner shall pay all costs and fees incurred by the Town for any and all reviews, approval 

request and document preparation by the Town Engineer and Town Attorney relating to the 
property, and shall enter into an agreement approved by the Town Attorney to pay these costs 
and fees; and,

 The Petitioner shall provide to the Town a recorded copy of the CSM.
Motion carried 6-0.

5. Public Hearing:  Amendment of Comprehensive Plan (Community Residential to Rural 
Preservation) & Rezone from County A-1 to County A-1EX, Laufenberg Property West of CTQ 
 & South of Balzer Rd. in the Town of Westport (PC-2560)

Chair Sipsma opened the public hearing at 6:08 p.m.

Wilson explained the request for the rezoning and comprehensive plan amendment.  Kelley indicated 
that several staff members had asked the property owner about the possibility of the City obtaining an 
easement on the southern 10 feet of the property for a bike path.  

The following individuals registered in support of the rezoning and the Comprehensive Plan 
amendment:

Stan Skolaski; Dean Laufenberg; Henry Laufenberg; Douglas Shillinglaw; David Grosse; Joan Grosse; 
Judy Acker-Maly; and Tim Ziegler.

Chair Sipsma closed the public hearing at 6:21 p.m.

6. Amendment of the Waunakee/Westport Joint Comprehensive Plan, Middleton/Westport 
Extraterritorial Area, Community Residential to Rural Preservation; and, Rezoning of Property 
from County A-1 to County A-1EX, Laufenberg Property West of CTH Q and South of Balzer 
Rd. in the Town of Westport (PC-2560), Discussion/Recommendation 

Pferdehirt asked Mr. Laufenberg if he would be open to a discussion about the City purchase of an 
easement for a bike path on the southern 10 feet of his property.  Mr. Laufenberg said the family 
position has been consistent for the past 25 years, as this is a farm that has been in their family for 125 
years and the intent is to continue to have it farmed, and they are not interested in discussing a bike path 
easement.   Following discussion, moved by Grosskopf, seconded by Hubbard, to recommend approval 
of the Comprehensive Plan amendment and the rezoning to A-1 Ex (Exclusive Agricultural) with the 
condition of a delayed effective date for the Comprehensive Plan amendment until Dane County amends 
its Farmland Preservation Plan consistent with this action. Motion carried 6-0.

7. Adjourn

Moved by Kennedy, seconded by Murray, to adjourn.  Motion carried 6-0.

EILEEN KELLEY Page 2 of 23



1 of 3 06/13/2019

OFFICE OF PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATION
CITY OF MIDDLETON PH  608.821.8370   FAX  608.827.1080
7426 HUBBARD AVENUE E-MAIL: ekelley@ci.middleton.wi.us
MIDDLETON, WI  53562-3118 WEB:  www.cityofmiddleton.us 

TO:  Middleton/Westport Joint Committee

FROM:  Eileen M. Kelley, AICP, Planning Director

RE: Staff Comments on 06-19-19 Agenda

DATE:  June 12, 2019

Below are my comments on the agenda items for the 06-19-19 meeting plus excerpts of Tom 
Wilson’s comments on the same items to the Town Plan Commission:

Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to Commercial) and Land Division for Cell 
Tower and Equipment, AT&T/Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton ETZ
The electronic packet for the meeting includes a request for a cell tower and related equipment on 
the property at 6039 CTH K.  There are several issues to consider initially, including an existing 
tower on adjacent property.  In addition to the applicant’s materials, staff has provided an excerpt 
from the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Section 10.103 Mobile Service Structure and Facilities Siting 
Regulations.  If the project moves forward, it would require first a Certified Survey Map and a 
rezoning, and then a request for a conditional use permit.

Here is an excerpt from comments Tom Wilson provided to the Westport Plan Commission when 
they discussed this on June 10, 2019:

“ATT wants to place a cell tower of a total height with antennae of about 200 feet within a 65 foot 
square area on land between two farm and storage buildings along CTH K, between the Ziegler 
farm and buildings for Yahara Materials/Advance Concrete.  The land is zoned County A-1 
Exclusive, which does not provide for this use, so a rezone is necessary or a special CUP.  It is 
located in the Middleton ETZ area, and Eileen Kelly may provide some thoughts to us before the 
meeting. She has been trying to work with the owners on co-location elsewhere, if possible (note 
there is a tower on the Peavey site very close by at a height of 130 feet with a potential when 
additional antennae can be added to go to 180 feet).”  

Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning and Certified Survey Map (Create 2 Single Family Lots), 
Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton ETZ
Here is an excerpt from comments by Tom Wilson for this item:

“This item does have to be considered in conjunction with the item above since it may create 
another parcel above what is being asked for here.  As noted above, the land is now zoned County 

Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to...Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to...Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to...Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to...Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to...

Page 1 of 364

http://www.cityofmiddleton.us/


2 of 3 06/13/2019

A-1 Exclusive, is in the Rural Preservation District in the Comprehensive Plan, and is located in 
the Middleton ETZ area.  The parcel is 32 acres created in 1998 when a two acre home parcel was 
created in the northeast section along CTH K.  There have been other divisions as well over the 
years, including part for the Yahara quarry (where Advanced Concrete is located), DNR lands, 
and perhaps others.   No land division restriction was placed on the CSM face when the parcel 
was last created.  You have been allowing land divisions to set off farm buildings from farm land 
for ease in selling the buildings and the property.  But here the owner is asking for two splits for 
family to have along CTH K, with a remaining approximate 30 acres, depending on the outcome 
of the potential CSM for the cell tower.  There are several policies from sections 4.1-4.6 on page 
51 mentioned in the Agricultural section of the Comp Plan, and supporting and maintaining 
farming is certainly a top goal in this area.  These types of divisions are to be reviewed on a case 
by case basis, but new housing is to be strictly limited.  This is also a parcel less than 35 acres, and 
so there are limits even to provide for only one residential use on the parcel (Section 4.5).  Any 
such land divisions as allowed are to be in non-prime ag soil areas, and the remainder must be 
restricted to no further land division.  You have in past allowed for divisions consistent with 
numbers of children in the family, as requested here, and the one acre parcel for each is also 
consistent (depending on distances here from CTH K), so you certainly could consider this request 
and find it consistent with the principles of the Comp Plan, as you could if you want to say no.  

Whatever the case you would need to consider that at some point you will probably see a request 
for a division of the farm buildings from the land itself, so you should consider the best place for 
these two new homes, and how they might share driveways.  

CTH K is also a limited access highway so there would need to be County Transportation 
approval of any further access.

So this is where you may need to make a policy choice.  Does the owner have essentially all of the 
splits allowed, or will you allow just a couple more to further restrict the remaining lands from 
future division?  Both can meet the goals of your Comp Plan, and both may be consistent with 
actions you have taken in the past.”

Here are the minutes from the June 10 Westport Plan Commission meeting on both of the above 
items:

An Initial Consultation for a Rezone (County A1-Ex to Commercial) and potential Land Division 
(Small Parcel Creation) for Cell Tower and Equipment, AT&T/Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton 
ETZ, was then held with Ryan Wollenberg, the construction manager for the ATT structure.  After a 
brief presentation by Wilson and Mr. Wollenberg, and after the commissioners’ questions were 
answered, the proponent was told of concerns and items to attempt to address before proceeding, 
most importantly co-location with a very close tower that still has room for expansion.  

An Initial Consultation for a Rezone and CSM (Create 2 Single Family Lots), Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, 
Middleton ETZ, was then held with the owner Karen Ziegler.  After a presentation by Wilson and 
comments from the owner and commissioners, the owner was informed of concerns regarding the 

Page 2 of 365



3 of 3 06/13/2019

location and number of additionally created lots since the parcel is already substandard and had 
been divided previously.

Proposed Church Use, Utility Connections and Potential Detachment, Cross Lutheran Church, 
Oncken Road, Community of Bishops Bay
The Middleton Public Works Committee took the following action with regard to the applicant’s 
request to allow a temporary solution for sewer and water service at their 04-22-19 meeting:

Lyons moved that the Committee deny the church’s request to develop a site that would rely 
upon a private water well or wastewater holding tank for an indefinite period of time, 
because it would be contrary to City ordinances, would be inconsistent with the utility 
planning for the development and would set a precedent for additional development without 
City water or sewer services.  Motion seconded by Schueffner, motion carried 5-0.

The applicant is now requesting an alternative, that the City and Town allow a detachment of a 20 
acre parcel that was a part of the original annexation for the Community of Bishops Bay 
development and allow a church to be constructed on property that would be deed restricted to 
require that the church be part of the utility district and pay their share of the costs for the district and 
connect to sanitary sewer and water service when available.  The concerns the City is likely to have 
with the request include creating a precedent to allow development that otherwise would be served 
with sanitary sewer and water service to proceed without either and potentially to not participate in 
the utility district.

Page 3 of 366



Page 4 of 367



Page 5 of 368



AT&T

MOBILITY

T1W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173








PROJECT : NSB
SITE # : WI2294
FA # : 10587455
PTN # : 3351A0J06P
PACE # : MRCHI036729
JURISDICTION : DANE COUNTY

SITE NAME : WAUNAKEE - BDN
ADDRESS : 6039 COUNTY HIGHWAY K

WAUNAKEE, WI 53597

Know what's

R

TO OBTAIN LOCATION OF PARTICIPANTS

UNDERGROUND FACILITIES BEFORE

YOU DIG IN WISCONSIN, CALL LOCAL

STATE ONE CALL

TOLL FREE: 1-800-242-8511 OR

www.diggershotline.com

WISCONSIN STATUTE

REQUIRES MIN OF 2

WORKING DAYS NOTICE

BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE














Page 6 of 369



SP1W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 7 of 3610



SP2W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 8 of 3611



SP3W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 9 of 3612



SP4W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173




















Page 10 of 3613



A1
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 11 of 3614



A2
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173








X X X X X X X X

Page 12 of 3615



A3
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 13 of 3616



A4W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 14 of 3617



A5
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 15 of 3618



A5.1
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 16 of 3619



A6
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173








EQUIPMENT PAD CONDUIT LAYOUT DETAIL

Page 17 of 3620



A6.1
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 18 of 3621



A6.2
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 19 of 3622



A7
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 20 of 3623



A8
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173








CIENA AND DC DISCONNECT MIOUNTED DETAIL

Page 21 of 3624



E1
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173








OHU OHU OHU OHU

UGT UGT UGT UGT

UGP/UGT UGP/UGT UGP/UGT

UGP UGP UGP UGP

OHP OHP OHP OHP

Page 22 of 3625



E2
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 23 of 3626



E3

GROUNDING PLAN AND DETAILS

W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 24 of 3627



E4
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 25 of 3628



E5
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 26 of 3629



E6
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 27 of 3630



RF
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 28 of 3631



SIGNAGE
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173








Beyond This Point you are
entering a controlled area where RF
emissions may exceed  the FCC
Occupational Exposure Limits.

Obey all posted signs and site guidelines
for working in a RF environment.

      Ref: 47CFR  1.1307(b)

Beyond This Point you are
entering a controlled area where RF
emissions may exceed  the FCC
General Population Exposure Limits.

Follow all posted signs and site guidelines
for working in a RF environment.

      Ref: 47CFR  1.1307(b)

CAUTIONNOTICE

INFORMATION

AT&T operates telecommunications antennas at this location. Remain at
least 3 feet away from any antenna and obey all posted signs.

Contact the owner(s) of the antenna(s)  before working  closer than 3 feet
from the antenna.

Contact AT&T at ______________ prior to performing any
maintenance or repairs  near AT&T antennas. This is
Site#____________

Contact the management office if this door/hatch/gate is found unlocked.

En esta propiedad se ubican antenas de telecomunicationes operadas por AT&T.
Favor mantener una distancia de no menos de 3 pies y obedecer todos los avisos.

Comuniquese con el propictario o los propicatarios de las antenas antes de
trabajar o caminar a una distancia de menos de 3 pies de la antena.

Comuniquese con AT&T _______antes de realizar cualquier mantenimiento o
reparaciones cerca de la antenas de AT&T.

Esta es la estacion base numero_______

Favor comunicarse con la oficina de la administracion del edificio si esta puerta o
compuerta se encuentra sin candado.

ACTIVE ANTENNAS ARE MOUNTED

STAY BACK A MINIMUM
OF 3 FEET

FROM THESE ANTENNAS

Contact AT&T at ________ and follow their
instructions prior to performing any maintenance or
repairs closer than 3 feet from the antennas.

This is AT&T site# _____________

ON THE OUTSIDE OF THIS BUILDING

BEHIND THIS PANEL

ON THIS STRUCTURE

INFORMATION

INFORMACION

S
T
A
Y

B
A
C
K

3

F
E
E
T

F
R
O
M

A
N
T
E
N
N
A

WARNING!

FAILURE TO OBEY ALL POSTED SIGNS AND SITE
GUIDELINES FOR WORKING IN A RADIO
FREQUENCY ENVIRONMENT COULD RESULT IN
SERIOUS INJURY. CONTACT CURRENT MAY
EXCEED LIMITS PRESCRIBED IN ANSI/EEE
C95.1-1992 FOR CONTROLLED ENVIRONMENTS.

DANGER DO NOT TOUCH TOWER!

SERIOUS "RF" BURN HAZARD!

MAINTAIN AN ADEQUATE
CLEARANCE BETWEEN TOWER

SUPPORTS AND GUY WIRES

0 23 4 012 01

Page 29 of 3632



A1
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 30 of 3633



A3
W  I  R  E  L  E  S  S

540 W. MADISON ST.

 9TH FLOOR

CHICAGO, IL  60661

www.sacw.com

312.895.4977



930 NATIONAL PARKWAY

SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173






 Page 31 of 3634



Page 32 of 3635



Page 33 of 3636



Page 34 of 3637



Page 35 of 3638



Page 36 of 3639



Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning and Certified...

Page 1 of 340



Page 2 of 341



Page 3 of 342



Proposal:  To detach a parcel of land Oncken Rd. from the City of Middleton to the Town of  
Westport for Cross Lutheran Church.  
 

6/3/2019  

Proposal:   

Our congregation, Cross Lutheran Church of Middleton, WI would like to request that the City 

of Middleton consider a temporary detachment agreement with the Town of Westport.  For the past 

six years, our congregation has been trapped in an indefinite holding pattern as we have waited for 

the necessary water and sewer services to become available in the community of Bishops Bay.  Over 

the years, we have looked at multiple pieces of property within the development, but feel that the site 

off Oncken Rd. best meets the criteria for a 2019-2020 facility construction.  Because water and sewer 

services are not yet available to the Oncken Rd. site we had previously requested that the city of 

Middleton consider allowing us to build with a temporary well/holding tank on the condition that we 

then hook up to city water and sewer services when they become serviceable to our site.  

Unfortunately, Middleton has a policy restricting wells and holding tank in that area, and so our 

proposal was rejected.     

We understand the city’s policy regarding water wells; and we recognize that Middleton 

doesn’t want to set any sort of precedent.  Therefore, considering the discussion at a recent Public 

Works Committee meeting on our request, we hoped to find an alternative that might be palatable to 

the City (at least on a temporary basis) and feel that our next best course of action is to request that 

Middleton consider a temporary detachment agreement for our proposed property from the City of 

Middleton into the Town of Westport.  Looking at the attached maps, you will see that our proposed 

site off Oncken Rd is both adjacent to and also across from land which is already a part of the town of 

Westport.  In the future, after city water and sewer services become available to our site, our 

congregation could later reattach back to Middleton and hook up to the available water and sewer 

lines.   

This request serves the city, town and the church.  It enables the church to take our next 

steps in moving our congregation forward.  For the City and the Town it shows that development is 

happening on the north side of Bishops Bay which could hopefully ignite future development in the 

area as any progress helps build momentum.  For the area residents, our congregation will be more 

effectively positioned to begin building community by starting ministry endeavors like youth and 

children’s programming as well as future school, afterschool, or childcare ministries which serve the 

communities of both Westport and Middleton all while not violating the city of Middleton’s policy 

regarding wells and private sewer system use.   

We believe that this option serves the City, Town, and the Church.  Thank you for your 

consideration.   

Rev. Joel Brandt 
Cross Lutheran Church 
300 Broadway Dr. 

Sun Prairie, WI 53590 

608-218-4797 

brandtj@crosslutheran.church 

C
R

O
S

S
 L

U
T

H
E

R
A

N
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 

3
0

0
 B

ro
a

d
w

a
y

 D
r. –

 S
u

n
 P

ra
irie

 –
 W

I - 5
3

5
9

0
 
 6

0
8

.2
1

8
.4

7
9

7
 


  b
ra

n
d

tj@
c

ro
sslu

th
e

ra
n

.c
h

u
rc

h
 

Proposed Church Use, Utility Connections and Potential...

Page 1 of 643

mailto:brandtj@trinitynet.org


Proposal:  To detach a parcel of land Oncken Rd. from the City of Middleton to the Town of  
Westport for Cross Lutheran Church.  

 

 

Page 2 of 644



 6/3/2019 

 3  

 
  

Page 3 of 645



 6/3/2019 

 4  

 
  

Page 4 of 646



 6/3/2019 

 5  

 
  

Page 5 of 647



 6/3/2019 

 6  

 

Page 6 of 648


	Agenda
	Approve Minutes of 01/21/19
	Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning (County A1-Ex to Commercial) and Land Division for Cell Tower and Equipment, AT&T/Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton ETZ
	Initial Consultation, Proposed Rezoning and Certified Survey Map (Create 2 Single Family Lots), Ziegler, 6039 CTH K, Middleton ETZ
	Proposed Church Use, Utility Connections and Potential Detachment, Cross Lutheran Church, Oncken Road, Community of Bishops Bay

